EAST WINDSOR TOWNSHIP COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES December 23, 2014

The meeting of the East Windsor Township Council was called to order by Mayor Janice S. Mironov at 7:30 p.m. on December 23, 2014.

Kelly Lettera certified that the meeting was noticed on January 3, 2014. Notices were sent to the Trenton Times, filed with the office of the municipal clerk and posted in the East Windsor municipal building. All requirements of the open public meeting act have been satisfied.

Township Manager Jim Brady led the flag salute.

Present were: Mayor Janice S. Mironov and Council Members Hector Duke, Marc Lippman, Alan Rosenberg, Peter Yeager and John Zoller. Also present were Township Manager James P. Brady and Kelly Lettera. Council Member Shapiro arrived at 7:45 p.m.

PRESENTATIONS & PROCLAMATIONS:

Mayor Mironov stated there was an Eagle Scout court of honor ceremony the previous evening, December 22, for Boy Scout Troop 5700 for Austin Freedman, who restored the pavilion at Anker Park, as well as some beautification work.

INTERVIEWS FOR BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS: None

PUBLIC COMMENT: None

MINUTES:

October 7, 2014 Mayor Mironov noted the minutes were revised.

It was MOVED by ROSENBERG and seconded by DUKE that the October 7, 2014 minutes be approved with revisions.

ROLL CALL: Ayes – Duke, Lippman, Rosenberg, Yeager, Zoller, Mironov Nays – None

There being six (6) ayes, no (0) nays, October 7, 2014 minutes were approved as revised.

October 21, 2014

It was MOVED by YEAGER and seconded by LIPPMAN that the October 21, 2014 minutes be approved with revisions dated.

ROLL CALL: Ayes – Lippman, Rosenberg, Shapiro, Yeager, Zoller, Mironov Nays – None Abstain - Duke

There being six (6) ayes, no (0) nays and one (1) abstention, October 21, 2014 minutes were approved as revised.

Mayor Mironov asked that the minutes from the November 11, November 25, and December 9, 2014 meetings be rescheduled.

ORDINANCE – INTRODUCTION:

ORDINANCE – PUBLIC HEARING:

Ordinance No. 2014-11 An Ordinance Amending and Supplementing Chapter X – Traffic, Section 10-6 and Schedule VII Speed Limits, of the Revised General Ordinances of the Township of East Windsor, to Establish Speed Limits on Milford Road

Kelly Lettera read by title Ordinance 2014-11.

Mayor Mironov stated the Ordinance had been introduced on November 25, 2014. Mayor Mironov declared open the public hearing on Ordinance 2014-11. Having no comments from members of the public, Mayor Mironov declared closed the public hearing.

It was MOVED by LIPPMAN and seconded by ROSENBERG that Ordinance No. 2014-11 be adopted and authorized publication as required by law.

ROLL CALL: Ayes – Duke, Lippman, Rosenberg, Shapiro, Yeager, Zoller, Mironov Nays – None

There being seven (7) ayes and no (0) nays, Ordinance No. 2014-11 was adopted and authorized publication as required by law.

Ordinance No. 2014-12 An Ordinance Amending and Supplementing Chapter X – Traffic, Schedule IX, No Stopping or Standing, of the Revised General Ordinances of the Township of East Windsor, to Establish Parking Restrictions on Tennyson Road

Kelly Lettera read by title Ordinance 2014-12.

Mayor Mironov noted the Ordinance had been introduced on December 9. Mayor Mironov declared open the public hearing on Ordinance 2014-12. Having no comments from members of the public, Mayor Mironov declared closed the public hearing.

It was MOVED by YEAGER and seconded by ZOLLER that Ordinance No. 2014-12 be adopted and authorized publication as required by law.

ROLL CALL: Ayes – Duke, Lippman, Rosenberg, Shapiro, Yeager, Zoller, Mironov Nays – None

There being seven (7) ayes and no (0) nays, Ordinance No. 2014-12 was adopted and authorized publication as required by law.

ORDINANCE - INTRODUCTION

RESOLUTIONS:

Resolution R2014-207 Authorizing Payment for Road Line Striping on One Mile Road from Dan Swayze and Sons for Department of Public Works

Kelly Lettera read by title Resolution R2014-207.

Mayor Mironov stated there was a recommendation from the Public Works Director. This was a follow up action by Mercer County for the project that repaired One Mile Road between Route 133 and The Orchard, and also continues the striping further up the road. She noted it was a great safety improvement and she had already received positive comments from residents, and that the Public Works Director had obtained a very good price.

Mayor Mironov requested that, in the future, all CFO certifications clearly reflect whether funds were coming from an operating or capital account, and include the name of the account. The certification in the fourth paragraph was 040.

It was MOVED by ZOLLER and seconded by SHAPIRO that Resolution R2014-207 be approved.

ROLL CALL: Ayes – Duke, Lippman, Rosenberg, Shapiro, Yeager, Zoller, Mironov Nays – None

There being seven (7) ayes, no (0) nays, Resolution R2014-207 was approved.

Resolution R2014-208 Authorizing Approval of Shared Services Agreement with Hamilton Township for Health Officer Services

Kelly Lettera read by title Resolution R2014-208.

Mayor Mironov noted an updated Resolution had been provided to Council that evening. She pointed out that the next three resolutions were regarding health services with Hamilton, and that Hamilton was kind enough to maintain the same pricing for the upcoming year. She also noted that the resolutions were standard and had been voted on in prior years.

It was MOVED by DUKE and seconded by ROSENBERG that Resolution R2014-208 be approved.

ROLL CALL: Ayes – Duke, Lippman, Rosenberg, Shapiro, Yeager, Zoller, Mironov Nays – None

There being seven (7) ayes, no (0) nays, Resolution R2014-208 was approved.

Resolution R2014-209	Authorizing Approval of Shared Service Agreement with
	Hamilton Township for Health Services

Kelly Lettera read by title Resolution R2014-209.

Mayor Mironov noted an updated Resolution had been provided to Council that evening.

It was MOVED by SHAPIRO and seconded by YEAGER that Resolution R2014-209 be approved.

ROLL CALL: Ayes – Duke, Lippman, Rosenberg, Shapiro, Yeager, Zoller, Mironov Nays - None

There being seven (7) ayes, no (0) nays, Resolution R2014-209 was approved.

Resolution R2014-210Authorizing Approval of Health Officer Agreement with
Hamilton Township Health Officer

Kelly Lettera read by title Resolution R2014-210.

Mayor Mironov noted an updated Resolution had been provided to Council that evening.

It was MOVED by LIPPMAN and seconded by ZOLLER that Resolution R2014-210 be approved.

ROLL CALL: Ayes – Duke, Lippman, Rosenberg, Shapiro, Yeager, Zoller, Mironov Nays – None

There being seven (7) ayes, no (0) nays, Resolution R2014-210 was approved.

Resolution R2014-211 Approval of Collective Bargaining Agreement with the Teamsters Local Union No. 469 for Fiscal Years 2012, 2013, 2014 and 2015

Kelly Lettera read by title Resolution R2014-211.

Mayor Mironov noted an updated, full and complete agreement had been provided to Council, and that if they did not wish to keep it they should leave it with staff that evening.

It was MOVED by DUKE and seconded by YEAGER that Resolution R2014-211 be approved.

ROLL CALL: Ayes – Duke, Lippman, Rosenberg, Shapiro, Yeager, Zoller, Mironov Nays – None

There being seven (7) ayes, no (0) nays, Resolution R2014-211 was approved.

Resolution R2014-212 Approving Amendment of Professional Services Agreement with Harry Haushalter for Tax Attorney

Kelly Lettera read by title Resolution R2014-212.

Mayor Mironov noted an updated Resolution had been provided to Council that evening.

It was MOVED by ROSENBERG and seconded by ZOLLER that Resolution R2014-212 be approved.

ROLL CALL: Ayes – Duke, Lippman, Rosenberg, Shapiro, Yeager, Zoller, Mironov Nays – None

There being seven (7) ayes, no (0) nays, Resolution R2014-212 was approved.

Resolution R2014-213 Approving Appointment of Municipal Clerk.

Kelly Lettera read by title Resolution R2014-213.

It was MOVED by SHAPIRO and seconded by YEAGER that Resolution R2014-213 be approved.

ROLL CALL: Ayes – Duke, Lippman, Rosenberg, Shapiro, Yeager, Zoller, Mironov Nays – None

There being seven (7) ayes, no (0) nays, Resolution R2014-213 was approved.

Resolution R2014-214	Approval of Termination of Lease Agreement between
	Township of East Windsor and Garrett Woolf of Tri
	County Turf, LLC for Property Located on Old York Road
	(Block 29, Lot 6)

Kelly Lettera read by title Resolution R2014-214.

Mayor Mironov noted recommendations had been received for both the termination and the re-bid.

It was MOVED by ZOLLER and seconded by DUKE that Resolution R2014-214 be approved.

ROLL CALL: Ayes – Duke, Lippman, Rosenberg, Shapiro, Yeager, Zoller, Mironov Nays – None

There being seven (7) ayes, no (0) nays, Resolution R2014-214 was approved.

Resolution R2014-215Authorizing Bidding for Lease of Farmland Along Old
York Road (Block 29, Lot 6)

Kelly Lettera read by title Resolution R2014-215.

It was MOVED by DUKE and seconded by ROSENBERG that Resolution R2014-215 be approved.

ROLL CALL: Ayes – Duke, Lippman, Rosenberg, Shapiro, Yeager, Zoller, Mironov Nays – None

There being seven (7) ayes, no (0) nays, Resolution R2014-215 was approved.

Resolution R2014-216	Approval of Termination of Lease Agreement
	Between Township of East Windsor and Garrett
	Woolf of Tri County Turf, LLC for Property
	Located on Conover Road (Block 46, Lot 11)

Kelly Lettera read by title Resolution R2014-216.

It was MOVED by ROSENBERG and seconded by DUKE that Resolution R2014-216 be approved.

ROLL CALL: Ayes – Duke, Lippman, Rosenberg, Shapiro, Yeager, Zoller, Mironov Nays – None

There being seven (7) ayes, no (0) nays, Resolution R2014-216 was approved.

Resolution R2014-217	Authorizing Bidding for Lease of Farmland Along
	Conover Road (Block 46, Lot 11)

Kelly Lettera read by title Resolution R2014-217.

It was MOVED by YEAGER and seconded by ROSENBERG that Resolution R2014-217 be approved.

ROLL CALL: Ayes – Duke, Lippman, Rosenberg, Shapiro, Yeager, Zoller, Mironov Nays – None

There being seven (7) ayes, no (0) nays, Resolution R2014-217 was approved.

Resolution R2014-218	Confirmation of Emergency Medical Services
	Policy

Kelly Lettera read by title Resolution R2014-218.

Mayor Mironov noted an updated Resolution had been provided to Council that evening.

It was MOVED by LIPPMAN and seconded by ROSENBERG that Resolution R2014-218 be approved.

ROLL CALL: Ayes – Duke, Lippman, Rosenberg, Shapiro, Yeager, Zoller, Mironov Nays – None

There being seven (7) ayes, no (0) nays, Resolution R2014-218 was approved.

Resolution R2014-219	Chapter 159 – Amending the 2014 Municipal
	Operating Budget Providing an Item of Revenue
	and Appropriation for the 2014 Drive Sober or Get
	Pulled Over Year End Holiday Crackdown

Kelly Lettera read by title Resolution R2014-219.

Mayor Mironov noted this Resolution was necessary to accept and appropriate the funds.

It was MOVED by ZOLLER and seconded by DUKE that Resolution R2014-219 be approved.

ROLL CALL: Ayes – Duke, Lippman, Rosenberg, Shapiro, Yeager, Zoller, Mironov Nays – None

There being seven (7) ayes, no (0) nays, Resolution R2014-219 was approved.

Resolution R2014-220 Authorizing Cancellation of Small Tax Balances

Kelly Lettera read by title Resolution R2014-220.

Mayor Mironov noted that there was no attached certification from the Tax Collector. The Tax Collector's memo said the statute was N.J.S.A. 40A:5-17, however that was not The statute cited in the Resolution. It should say "on the Tax Collector's list, pursuant to 40A:5-17." Also, the attachment should indicate that it was the Tax Collector's list of small balances" and should be dated December 23, 2014. Mayor Mironov asked that be included in the Resolution as well.

Council Member Yeager asked that the columns on the list include headers.

Council Member Shapiro asked if there was a minimum amount for refunds as some refunds cost more than the process. Mayor Mironov asked that staff clarify for Council

It was MOVED by DUKE and seconded by ZOLLER that Resolution R2014-220 be approved as amended.

ROLL CALL: Ayes – Duke, Lippman, Rosenberg, Shapiro, Yeager, Zoller, Mironov Nays – None

There being seven (7) ayes, no (0) nays, Resolution R2014-220 was approved as amended.

Resolution R2014-221Authorizing Transfers Among the 2014 Budget
Appropriations

Kelly Lettera read by title Resolution R2014-221.

Mayor Mironov noted she had received updates to some questions she had asked. The animal control amount was not necessary and suggested it be removed. In addition, the Court salary and wage amount should be \$4500, not \$3500, which would total \$9500,

down from \$11,460, as the total amount of transfers.

It was MOVED by LIPPMAN and seconded by DUKE that Resolution R2014-221 be approved as amended.

ROLL CALL: Ayes – Duke, Lippman, Rosenberg, Shapiro, Yeager, Zoller, Mironov Nays – None

There being seven (7) ayes, no (0) nays, Resolution R2014-221 was approved as amended.

Resolution R2014-222	Approval of Assignment of a Developer's
	Agreement between Allstar Route 130 EW, LLC
	and Nijjar Realty, LLC

Kelly Lettera read by title Resolution R2014-222.

Mayor Mironov stated a note had been received from the attorney that it had been purchased, and noted that they were eager to move forward.

It was MOVED by ZOLLER and seconded by ROSENBERG that Resolution R2014-222 be approved.

ROLL CALL: Ayes – Duke, Lippman, Rosenberg, Shapiro, Yeager, Zoller, Mironov Nays – None

There being seven (7) ayes, no (0) nays, Resolution R2014-222 was approved.

Resolution R2014-110	Action on Request for Release of Performance
	Guarantees for Riviera at East Windsor – Off-Site
	Improvements

Kelly Lettera read by title Resolution R2014-110.

Mayor Mironov noted this had been held from a meeting over the summer due to ongoing issues. Also, Mr. Orron had some language changes. Mr. Orron stated that the performance bond had been held beyond the maintenance period. On paragraph one, page two, a period should be placed after \$1534.38, as well as A, B and C below, and add a paragraph two stating "as this performance bond has been held beyond the customary maintenance period and that maintenance has been resolved, therefore no maintenance bond should be required."

Mayor Mironov stated the checklist from the CFO indicating that all fees and charges had been satisfied had been included in Council's packet that evening.

It was MOVED by ROSENBERG and seconded by DUKE that Resolution R2014-110 be approved as amended.

ROLL CALL: Ayes – Duke, Lippman, Rosenberg, Shapiro, Yeager, Mironov Nays – None Abstain - Zoller

There being six (6) ayes, no (0) nays and one (1) abstention, Resolution R2014-110 was approved as amended.

Resolution R2014-223	Action on Request for Release of Performance
	Guarantees for Riviera at East Windsor –
	Clubhouse

Kelly Lettera read by title Resolution R2014-223.

Mayor Mironov asked Mr. Orron to address this Resolution as well. Mr. Orron stated the same issues as those from R2014-110 applied. On page two after \$17,889.28, as well as A, B and C below, and add a paragraph two stating "as this performance bond has been held beyond the customary maintenance period and that maintenance has been resolved, therefore no maintenance bond should be required."

Mayor Mironov added that there had been communications with the homeowners association, and they had a satisfactory arrangement regarding the clubhouse.

Mayor Mironov stated the checklist from the CFO indicating that all fees and charges had been satisfied had been included in Council's packet that evening.

It was MOVED by DUKE and seconded by ROSENBERG that Resolution R2014-223 be approved as amended.

ROLL CALL: Ayes – Duke, Lippman, Rosenberg, Shapiro, Yeager, Mironov Nays – None Abstain - Zoller

There being six (6) ayes, no (0) nays, and one (1) abstention, Resolution R2014-223 was approved as amended.

APPLICATIONS:

Mayor Mironov inquired if everything was in order for New Jersey Fireman's Association Membership Application for Richard DeSilva, Jr. Ms. Lettera responded yes.

It was MOVED by ROSENBERG and seconded by DUKE that the New Jersey Fireman's Association Membership Application for Richard DeSilva, Jr. be approved.

ROLL CALL: Ayes – Duke, Lippman, Rosenberg, Shapiro, Yeager, Zoller, Mironov Nays – None

There being seven (7) ayes, no (0) nays, the New Jersey Fireman's Association Membership Application for Richard DeSilva, Jr. was approved.

REPORTS BY COUNCIL AND STAFF:

Council Member Yeager stated the Municipal Alliance met on Wednesday, December 10. They discussed second quarter reporting ending December 31 and the 2015-2016 application for the second year of the grant. Mayor Mironov noted she had asked the Clerk's Office to list the grant on the January 20 agenda.

Council Member Yeager stated the Environmental Committee met on December 17. They discussed the recent Sustainable Jersey Bronze Certification and participation in any tasks needed for renewal, as well as the Community Forestry program for 2014 and renewing the plan in 2015.

Council Member Zoller stated the Commission on Aging met on Thursday, December 18. Seniors are interested in winter preparedness and he directed them to the Township website, where they found good information linked to the New Jersey Department of Emergency Management. Also the Directory of Senior Services was ready for its next step of printing. Mayor Mironov asked that a copy be placed in town hall.

Mayor Mironov stated the Clean Communities Committee met on December 18. The committee began the process of finalizing the Adopt-a-Spot wrap-up meeting, which would be on January 29 at 7:00 p.m. in the Senior Center. Letters to the groups had been sent. They discussed selection of recycling and paper shredding days, and the possibility of adding a third date over the summer. The committee also discussed participation in Sustainable Jersey and possible action items. In addition, the 2015 meeting schedule was discussed.

Mayor Mironov stated Mayor Mironov and Council Member Zoller attended the DARE graduation at the Rogers School on December 12.

Mayor Mironov stated that the Township had closed on the 24.14 acre property at 181 Airport Road. The purchase was made with Green Acres and Mercer County Open Space funding, as well as developer-contributed funds.

CORRESPONDENCE:

APPOINTMENTS:

APPROVAL OF BILLS:

Council Member Shapiro asked if the bill for Arrow on page 8 on the Current 2014 Bill List was for pest control. The Township Manager confirmed.

Council Member Zoller asked about the item for work shoes on page 8 on the Current 2014 Bill List. He stated it was a large amount. The Township Manager confirmed that it was for multiple shoes.

Council Member Zoller asked about a petty cash reimbursement for \$155 on page 18 of the Current 2014 Bill List, as well as a petty cash reimbursement on page two of Recreation. Mayor Mironov inquired if Council Member Zoller wanted them pulled. He responded no, he just wished for clarification. The Township Manager will provide this. Mayor Mironov noted that including the policy in the clarification would be helpful.

Mayor Mironov asked about the bills for licensed professionals for Hankins/Airport Road on page 4 of the Current 2014 Bill List. She stated they should fall under "Other Accounts," either the Transportation Improvement Program or Open Space.

Mayor Mironov stated two bills should be held on the Capital Bill list on the bottom of page one and the top of page two. In addition, there should be a Council resolution number. On page two, HVAC engineering, there was a payment for \$11,000 that should be pulled as the requested information from the budget hearings had not been received.

Mayor Mironov noted there was a bill list labeled "Developers Agreement" and it was unclear what it meant. If it was the Transportation Improvement Fund it would be appropriate. She would like the bill held until clarified.

It was MOVED by LIPPMAN and seconded by DUKE that the bills be approved without those pulled and subject to the questions and clarifications.

ROLL CALL: Ayes - Duke, Lippman, Rosenberg, Shapiro, Yeager, Zoller, Mironov Nays - None

There being seven (7) ayes, no (0) nays the bills were approved without those pulled and subject to questions and clarifications.

MATTERS BY COUNCIL:

Mayor Mironov stated a letter had been received from Womanspace thanking Mayor and Council for participating in Communities of Light.

Mayor Mironov stated a note from the Township Manager had been received clarifying the Labor Day crackdown program.

Mayor Mironov stated a report from the BAN sale had been received from the Finance Director.

Mayor Mironov asked that information be provided to Mayor and Council regarding the cost of the restoration of Bear Brook Pathway from Oak Creek Road to Wiltshire Park.

Mayor Mironov stated the annual Food Drive would kick off on January 1, 2015 at which time buckets would be out to benefit the Greenhouse Pantry at St. Anthony's and the RISE Pantry. Drop off points would be the East Windsor Municipal Building, East Windsor Court Building and the East Windsor Fire Company Number 2.

DISCUSSION ITEMS AND COUNCIL ACTION WHERE APPROPRIATE:

1. Township Parks Equipment Review

Resolution R2014-224	Approval of Purchase of Grills and Trash
	Cans for Etra Park and Disbrow Hill Park

Mayor Mironov noted this was a follow up to the capital program discussion during which funding had been added for park improvements. An assessment of the Township parks had been conducted by the Public Works Director. After reviewing the memo, she suggested all grills be replaced in Etra Lake Park, as well as place garbage receptacles in Disbrow Hill Park. Mayor Mironov further suggested converting softball fields to soccer fields at Veterans Park in Cranbury Manor. All equipment at Veterans Park would be removed, and if the community preferred something else the Township would be able to easily repurpose the field and add new equipment if necessary. In addition, she suggested the tennis courts at Veterans Park and Wiltshire Park be replaced as they were heavily used. Fencing work may have to be done and might require a bid. This determination would be made by the Public Works Director.

Council Member Lippman agreed that the soccer field at Veterans Park was a good idea, as well as the grills at Etra Lake Park and the tennis courts at Veterans and Wiltshire Parks. Council Members Rosenberg and Shapiro also agreed. Council Member Zoller asked if the soccer goals and fencing in the recommendation were included in the resolution. Mayor Mironov responded no, she desired to see how the public used the

park first. Council Member Lippman commented that the report was a good idea and thanked Mayor Mironov for initiating it.

Mayor Mironov noted that there was a Resolution, recommendations and a number of quotes that had been received for purchase of grills and receptacles for Etra Lake Park and Disbrow Hill Park.

Mayor Mironov asked that in the fifth paragraph of the resolution the first line should read "funds are available in the capital fund accounts entitled...." "Is" and the number should be removed. The finance certification number is 041.

It was MOVED by LIPPMAN and seconded by YEAGER that Resolution R2014-224 be approved as amended.

ROLL CALL: Ayes – Duke, Lippman, Rosenberg, Shapiro, Yeager, Zoller, Mironov Nays – None

There being seven (7) ayes, no (0) nays, Resolution R2014-224 was approved as amended.

Mayor Mironov then asked Council if there was a motion to remove the deteriorated equipment from Veterans Park so that the property could be used for soccer.

It was MOVED by LIPPMAN and seconded by ROSENBERG that the motion to remove the deteriorated equipment from Veterans Park so that the property could be used for soccer be approved.

ROLL CALL: Ayes – Duke, Lippman, Rosenberg, Shapiro, Yeager, Zoller, Mironov Nays – None

There being seven (7) ayes, no (0) nays, the motion was approved.

Mayor Mironov then asked Council if there was a consensus among Members regarding the tennis courts at Veterans and Wiltshire Parks for resurfacing and fencing. Council responded aye unanimously.

2. 2015 Independence Day Celebration

Mayor Mironov commented this had been discussed at a previous Council meeting and that information from staff had been received in response to questions by Members. Mayor Mironov noted that July 3 and July 4 dates would not work and Council Members concurred. It was suggested that options could be Wednesday, July 1, Thursday, July 2, and Sunday, July 5 with a rain date of the following weekend.

Council Member Yeager stated his first choice was Thursday, July 2. Council Member Shapiro agreed and suggested a rain date of Sunday, July 5. Council approved these dates unanimously.

3. 2015 Summer Concerts Program

Mayor Mironov asked that staff clarify whether there were programs other than concerts, such as family nights or movie nights that had been considered. Mayor Mironov noted the Recreation Commission's recommendations for the concerts were Rayvon, the B Street Band, Rick Larrimore, Simply Diamond and the Infernos. Mayor Mironov's suggestions were the B Street Band, Simply Diamond, and the Bronx Wanderers or the Infernos, although she preferred the Bronx Wanderers. All were subject to checking the group's performances, quality and reputation.

Council Member Yeager recommended the B Street Band, Simply Diamond, and preferred the Bronx Wanderers over Inferno.

Council Member Rosenberg preferred Rayvon, the Bronx Wanderers and Simply Diamond.

Council Members Duke and Shapiro agreed with Mayor Mironov's choices.

Mayor Mironov commented that the next step would be to obtain further information about these groups and look at available dates and rain dates.

4. East Windsor Gateway Sign

Mayor Mironov explained the gateway sign on the Public Works building was missing some letters, and with the Township Turnpike Planning Study it would be a good time to repair or replace it. She requested input from Council, and would be asking the Economic Development Committee for thoughts as well. Mayor Mironov believed it was a good time to do the improvements and showcase the Township. Mayor Mironov reviewed the information provided at her request from the Public Works Director

Council Member Lippman agreed that it was a good idea, and wished to look into replacing and illuminating the sign. Council Member Yeager agreed. Council Member Zoller suggested adding a message such as "welcome" or "business friendly." Council Member Rosenberg expressed a strong desire to have the sign illuminated.

MATTERS BY PUBLIC:

Amanda Brooks, 888 Old York Road, East Windsor, requested a copy of the Emergency Medical Services Resolution. Mayor Mironov directed her to staff.

Brian Foley, 6 Barrington Drive, West Windsor, commented on a vehicle his company had purchased in an online auction.

There being no further business Mayor Mironov adjourned the meeting at 8:55.

Kelly Lettera Acting Municipal Clerk Janice S. Mironov Mayor